
 

 
1106 Vernon Road, Suite A 

Lake Stevens, WA 98258 
(425) 334-8588  Fax (425) 335-5947 
Website: www.lkstevenssewer.org 

Mission Statement:  Meeting the challenge of protecting the environment and providing quality sewer service to the community. 
 

AGENDA 
COMMISSIONER MEETING 

NOVEMBER 9, 2023 at 9:00 AM 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
3. PUBLIC FORUM – Non-action Items (please limit comments to 3 minutes) 
4. AGENDA APPROVAL 
5. CONSENT ITEMS (The Commissioners have previously reviewed these in detail): 

A. Minutes: Oct 26th & Nov 1st  AMOUNT CHECK #’s 
B. Lien Placements (49) NA  
 Lien Releases (48) NA  
 Lien Foreclosure Lawsuit (0) NA  
C. Investments $373,500.00  
 Withdrawals $1,465,247.26  
 Transfers NA  
D. Payroll       $261,319.92  
E. 40 – Maintenance $111,381.69 11425 – 11464 
F. 48 – SRF Principle & Interest Payment $1,465,247.26 11465 
G. 58 – Capital Expenditures  NA  
H. 60 – PWTF Principle & Interest Payment NA  
I. Housekeeping -  NA  
    

 
6. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Approval for Sybis Lift Station Lock Replacement Project, $64,205.01 – 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS  
A. 228 North Davies Rd DEA -  

 

8. MANAGERS’ REPORTS 
A. General Manager  
B. Assistant General Manager 

9. CITY REPORT  
10. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

IN PERSON /VIRTUAL MEETING:  
Please join our meeting at 1106 Vernon Rd, James B Mitchell Conference Room or join 
virtually via Go To Meeting: (You will be asked to identify yourself for our sign in sheet) 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/646704685 
You can dial in using your phone:  
United States (Toll Free): 1 877 309 2073  
United States: +1 (312) 757-3129  
Access Code: 646-704-685 

tel:+18668994679,,622920045
tel:+13127573117,,622920045


 
 
 
 

12. CONCLUDE 
 
NOTICE: All proceedings of this meeting are audio recorded, except Executive Sessions 

 
**PLEASE NOTE: The Lake Stevens Sewer District will accept verbal citizen comments during the regular 
meetings in-person or virtually. Citizen comments submitted prior to the meeting to 
management@lkssd.org will be addressed during the public comment period. 

 



1 
 

 

 
1106 Vernon Road, Suite A 

Lake Stevens, WA 98258 
(425) 334-8588 Fax (425) 335-5947 
Website: www.lkstevenssewer.org 

 
Mission Statement:  Meeting the challenge of protecting the environment and providing quality sewer service to the community. 

 

MINUTES OF 
COMMISSIONER MEETING 

OCTOBER 26, 2023, at 9:00 AM 
 
Attendees:  Commissioners Andrea Wright, Dan Lorentzen and Kevin Kosche, District Staff: Mariah 
Low and Johnathan Dix. Legal Counsel: Jack Follis, G&O: Keith Stewart, City Staff: Gene Brazel. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – At 9:00 AM Commissioner Kosche called the meeting to order.  
 

2. PUBLIC FORUM – Non-action Items (please limit comments to 3 minutes) Commissioner Kosche 
asked if there were any public comments or questions submitted. No questions submitted. No one 
in attendance. There were no public comments.  

 
3. AGENDA APPROVAL – Commissioner Lorentzen moved to approve the agenda with the removal 

of Old Business -  A, which is a duplicate of Old Business - B. Commissioner Wright seconded the 
Motion. The Motion passed.  
 

4. CONSENT ITEMS (The Commissioners have previously reviewed these in detail) – Commissioner 
Lorentzen moved to approve Consent Items A through J. Commissioner Wright seconded the Motion. 
The Motion passed. 

A. Minutes: Oct 12th     AMOUNT CHECK #’s 
B. Lien Placements (0) NA  
 Lien Releases (0) NA  
 Lien Foreclosure Lawsuit (0) NA  
C. Investments $563,611.54  
 Withdrawals $1,711,081.02  
 Transfers $1,677,0408.01  
D. Payroll  NA         
E. 40 – Maintenance $32,283.06 EFT 176 
  $120,449.95 11398-11420 
F. 48 – SRF Principle & Interest Payment NA  
G. 58 – Capital Expenditures  $37,556.02 11421-11424 
H. 60 – PWTF Principe & Interest Payment NA  
I. Housekeeping -  $35.27 11171 to 11397 
J. Job Descriptions (28) NA  

 
        

5. OLD BUSINESS –  

A. Resolution No 1055 Final Acceptance of Sparman Annexation – Johnathan Dix stated that the 
45-day comment and review period for BRB ended October 17, 2023. Resolution 1055 will 
finalize the area known as Sparman Annexation into the District boundary. Legal has reviewed 



 
 
 

2 
 

the resolution and staff recommends approval. Commissioner Lorentzen made a Motion to 
approve Resolution 1055. Commissioner Wright seconded the Motion. The Motion passed.  

 

6. NEW BUSINESS –  

A. Discussion: Amending billing procedures for newly established accounts (District Code 9.10.060) 
– Mariah Low shared a flow chart with the commissioners. Over the years customers have made 
comments about the timing of when monthly sewer charges start with new connections. 
Currently, monthly sewer charges start when a customer completes a side sewer permit 
application. The customer has 90 days to complete the side sewer inspection, but the monthly 
charges start as soon as the permit is paid. Staff suggests that the monthly sewer charges start 
once the side sewer inspection is complete. This could cause some issues if the developer or 
property owner doesn’t schedule the inspection before occupying the home, which has 
happened in the past. The result of this would be monthly charges lost until the connection was 
discovered by the District. Staff would like to rewrite the District Code and would like 
Commissioner input. Commissioner Wright wanted to make sure that there is a way to keep track 
of missed inspections if the District Code were to change. Commissioner Kosche suggested 
keeping the charges the same but then the District reimbursing the customer for months paid 
before occupancy when they provide the necessary documents.  

7. MANAGERS’ REPORTS 

A. General Manager – Mariah Low stated that the daily Plant flows are 2.599 MGD. The District is 
now able to collect all sewer related fees from credit cards. The WA State Auditor’s Office 
informed the District the 2022 audit and the 2023 audit will be performed at the same time. 2022 
Audits are being pushed out due to time constraints for the WA State Auditor’s Office. 

B. Assistant General Manager –  Johnathan Dix stated that the District has received 68.07 GFCs 
and 134 permits have been issued year to date.  

 

8. CITY REPORT – Gene Brazel stated that the City Harvest Fest will take place on October 31st in 
downtown Lake Stevens. City Council recently approved the purchase of property on the Southside 
of the lake for City buildings.  

 

9. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT – Commissioner Lorentzen and Wright both attended the most 
recent WASWD Section III meeting. They both found it very informative. Commissioner Kosche 
stated that he is very happy about the improvements made with technology, accepting credit cards 
for all payments. He also appreciates the City and District staff’s working on the early merger of the 
two entities.  

 

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION –  Jack Follis stated the Commission will now recess into Executive Session 
at 9:20 AM and excused the General Public; it is estimated the executive session will last until 9:45 
AM. The purpose of the Executive Session, under RCW 42.30.110(1)(i), is to discuss potential or 
pending litigations. At the conclusion of the Executive Session, there will not be action taken by the 



 
 
 

3 
 

Board of Commissioners and no announcement will be made. At 9:45 AM, Commissioner Kosche 
closed the executive session. 

 

11. CONCLUDE – Commissioner Lorentzen made a Motion to adjourn the Board Meeting. 
Commissioner Wright seconded the Motion. The Motion passed at 9:45 AM.  

 

 

 
Signed at a regular open public meeting this 9th day of November 2023 

 
 

  
           __________________________________ 
           Dan Lorentzen, Commissioner 
 
 
           ___________________________________ 
           Andrea Wright, Secretary and Commissioner 
 
 
           ___________________________________ 
           Kevin Kosche, President and Commissioner 



  

  
1106 Vernon Road, Suite A 

Lake Stevens, WA 98258 
       (425) 334-8588    Fax (425) 335-5947 

 Website:  www.lkstevenssewer.org

Mission Statement:  Meeting the challenge of protecting the environment and providing quality sewer service to the community. 
 

MINUTES  
OF SPECIAL MEETING  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

NOVEMBER 1, 2023  
Utility Committee 

By Remote Participation via GoToMeeting.com and in person at  
1106 Vernon Rd, Lake Stevens, WA  98258 

 
Attendees:  Commissioners Dan Lorentzen, Kevin Kosche, and Andrea Wright; Staff: 
Mariah Low, Johnathan Dix, and Rosalind Gorc. 
 
Guests from the City of Lake Stevens:  Councilmembers Gary Petershagen, Ryan 
Donoghue, and  Mayor Brett Gailey and City Staff: Anya Warrington, Gene Brazel, Russ 
Wright, Barb Stevens, and Aaron Halverson. 
 

1. Called to Order at 4:00PM by Commissioner Kosche. He moved into the meeting agenda 
item “Utility Committee Meeting”. 

 
2. Utility Committee Meeting – The Committee discussed mutual projects and planning for 

the Lake Stevens UGA  
 
3. Conclude – Commissioner Lorentzen made a Motion to adjourn the Board Meeting. 

Commissioner Wright seconded the Motion. The Motion passed at 4:59 PM. 
 

 
Signed at a regular open public meeting this 9th day of November 2023 

 
   

 
         _________________________________ 
         Dan Lorentzen, Commissioner 
 
 
         _________________________________ 
         Andrea Wright, Secretary & Commissioner 
 
 
         _________________________________ 
         Kevin Kosche, President, and Commissioner 
          
 



SYBIS LLC QUOTE NUMBER: LKSSD-02A
9925 NE 134th Court, Suite 100 DATE: 11/1/2023
Kirkland, WA 98034 Quotation valid until: 12/31/2023

Quotation For: Provided by:
Melonie Grieser Jeremy Djajadi
Lake Stevens Sewer District jeremy@sybissolution.com
1106 Vernon Road, Suite A (425) 753-5923
Lake Stevens, WA 98258
(425) 339-3582

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

CYBERLOCKS   

CL-6P1 CyberLock Cylinder, 6-pin conventional, Schlage 13 ($ 229.00)    ($ 2,977.00)        

CL-M2 CyberLock Cylinder, mortise, 1-1/8", brushed chrome finish 15 ($ 289.00)    ($ 4,335.00)        

CL-R1 CyberLock Cylinder, rim US standard, brushed chrome finish 2 ($ 292.00)    ($ 584.00)           

CL-C6N CyberLock Cam Lock, 3/4″ in dia., 1/4″ Tenon, multiple latches 6 ($ 239.00)    ($ 1,434.00)        

PL-03-A CyberLock Padlock, brass, 5/16" shackle diameter, 3" shackle vertical clearance 86 ($ 375.00)    ($ 32,250.00)      
Note: Padlock amount per spreadsheet by Melonie 11/01/2023

CYBERKEYS   

CK-USB CyberKey, Rechargeable Battery, Replaceable Brass Tip, USB 20 ($ 127.00)    ($ 2,540.00)        

  

COMMUNICATORS   

CKS-020 USB Station, for PC / Windows machine only 1 ($ 312.00)    ($ 312.00)           

AHG2R-W1 Authorizer Hub, Gen II network device remote CyberKey authorizations, 120v/60Hz 1 ($ 1,069.00)  ($ 1,069.00)        

AKG2R-01 Authorizer Keyport, Gen II metal numeric keypad LED display 8 characters 1 ($ 739.00)    ($ 739.00)           

  

SOFTWARE   

CYBERHOST
Subscription-based, web-based CyberAuditWeb Enterprise Software Option
Cost: $3.50 per key, per lock, per month. Price shown annually.
***Auto-renews every year on anniversary date***

136 ($ 42.00)       ($ 5,712.00)        

TRAINING Software Training, intended for the assigned access control administrator(s) 8 ($ 150.00)    ($ 1,200.00)        

  

ACCESSORIES   

CK-CAP-010 CyberKey Rubber Tip Cap, pack of 10 2 ($ 95.00)       ($ 190.00)           

BRUSH Stainless Steel Brush Bristles 20 ($ 15.00)       ($ 300.00)           

CHRGR-USB-CK USB Charger Wall Plug, 5W, to recharge CyberKeys 20 ($ 15.00)       ($ 300.00)           

CBL-USB-CK USB Cable, Micro-B, to recharge CyberKeys 20 ($ 10.00)       ($ 200.00)           

  

LABOR   

INSTALL-DR Installation Cost for CyberLock Cylinders on Doors (30 doors + contingency) 40 ($ 115.00)     ($ 4,600.00)        

  

  

Comments / Special Instructions: SUBTOTAL  ($ 58,742.00)      

WA-DES MCUA Contract #05416 Vendor #W47293 TAX RATE  9.30%

Cost-per-door: $506.40 SALES TAX  ($ 5,463.01)        

Installation Labor: $115/hour OTHER  ( -  )                  

GRAND TOTAL  ($ 64,205.01)      






























	11-09-23 Agenda.pdf
	10-26-23 Minutes.pdf
	11-01-23 Special Meeting -Utility Committee.pdf
	Quote_LKSSD-02A.pdf
	228 North Davies Rd DEA.pdf

